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Mafube Local Municipality

Annuat Financial Staternents for the vear ended 30 June 2013

Accounting Officer’s Responsibifities and Approveal

In terms of section 1268{1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 {Act No. 56 of 2803}, | am responzible for the
presentation of these annuasl financial statements set ot on pages 5 to 72, which have been prepared on the going concern basis,
were approved by the audit committes on 26 August 2013 and were signed on its behalf below,

{ certify that the salarles, alfowsances and benefits of councillors as disclosed in note 30 of these annual financial statements, are
within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in section 219 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 {Act No.
108 of 1986}, read with the Remuneration of Public (fficer Bearers Act, 1998 {Act No. 20 of 1988) and the Minister of Provincial ang
Local Government's determination in accordance with this Act.

30 August 2013
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Accounting Officer's Report

The Accounting Officer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2013,
1. Review of activities
Main business and operations

The municipality is engaged in providing municipal services as per schedule 5 and 6 of the Constitution, infrastructure development and
furthering the interests of the local community mainly in the Mafube area and operates principally In the Free State provinge.

The operating results and state of affairs of the municipatity are fully set out In the attached annual financial statemants and do notin
our opinion require any further comment,

Z.  Financial sustainability

The municipality is experiencing financial difficulties, indicators are as follow:

~ Suppliers were not paid within the legislative 30 days;

- The municipality defaulted on the repayment of the DBSA non-current borrowings;

- The municipality used conditional grants recelved to pay for operating expenses

- VAT returns were not submitted and paid to SARS on time;

- PAYE, UIF and 5DL were not submitted and paid over to SARS on time;

- Statutory deductions from salaries were deducted but not paid over on time; and

- Employee benefit obiigations are unfunded.

The municipality is exploring alternative options to improve #'s financiaf position.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the hasis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
prasumes that funds will be avallable to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of Habilities,
contingent fabilities and commitments will cocur in the ordinary course of business.

The ahility of the municipality to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that
the Accounting Officer continue to source funding for the ongoing operations for the municipality.

Althcugh certain financial ratio’s may appear unfavourable, the municipality still has the power to levy rates and taxes and it wiil
continue to receive funding from government as evident from the equitable share aflocation in terms of the Division of Revenue Act,
2012 (Act No. 5 of 2012}

3. Subseqgient events

The Accounting Officer is not aware of any matter or circumnstance arising since the end of the financial year,

4,  Accounting Officet's interest in contracts

The Accounting Officer has no interests in contracts for the year under review.

5. Accounting Officer

The Accouiting Offfcer of the muricibatity during the year and 1o the date of this report is as follows:

Name Nationality
Pt Radebe South African
B. Auditors

Auditor-Ganeral will continue In office for the next Financial period.
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Statement of Financial Position

Figures in Rand Notes 2013 2012
Assats
Current Assets
inventories 3 879 000 6§78 831
Gther financial assets 4 121056 110G 848
Recedvables from exchange transactions 5 2050518 2667 439
Consumer debtors & 38844122 41813739
Cash and cash equivalents 7 28688097 329930
44 543 794 45 600 907
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 8 44 868 286 45 248 635
Pragerty, plant and equipment 9 1681 116741 1770341 205
Intangible assets 10 - 202 500
Other financial assets 4 296 611 262945
1726 281638 1816 055 285
Total Assets 1770 825 432 1861 656 192
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Currant portion of non-currant borrowings 12 324 429 323 297
Current portion of finance lease labilities i3 790 184 1213 540
Payables from exchange transactions 14 143 364 682 117 788 007
VAT payable 15 5183528 11216466
Consumer deposits i6 702102 684 969
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 17 14333 876 7068011
Bank overdraft 7 - 3124 278
167 758 762 141 412 568
Non-Current Liabilitles
Mon-current borrowings 12 1752 745 1931 835
Nan-current portion of finance fease Habilfties 13 1414 540 355 358
Empioyee benefits 18 11474804 10 947945
Nen-carrest provisions i 108G 832 2564 000
17,731 931 16 1899 138
Total Liabilities 185 480 693 157 617 706
Met Aszets 1585334739 1704 038 486
et Aszels
Accurmilated surplus 1585334 735 1764038 a8
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Notes 2013 2012
Revenue

Property rates 2 16 322 286 19 167 186
Service charges i3 43222421 67 415 %30
Royalty income 24 648 011 -
Rental of facilities and equipment 25 151086 181074
Fines 133 744 118185
Government grants and subsidies 28 110175 513 106 066 715
Auction fees 773173 196G 519
fecoveries 7 2 584 934 1254972
Other income 28 2211030 2756 379
interest received 29 7514 847 9 166 555
Total Revenue 183 746 045 206 447 825
Expenditure

Employee reiated costs 30 {66 426 985} {54 870 577)
Ramuneration of councifiors 31 {5 440 964) (5087072}
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 32 {123 676 891) {120 148 656}
Finance charges 33 {7 278 597) {7 852 228}
Debt impairment 34 (40 276 463) (9 430773}
Repairs and maintenance {8 668071) {10 767 643}
Bulk purchases 35 {9 168 910} {36 778 657)
Grants and subsidies paid 36 {7 529 210) {7 708 584)
General expensas 37 {33 525 590) (38 220 784}
Total Expenditure {302 992 685) {290 884 954)
Fair value adjustments 38 {65 747} {551 149}
Gain on disposal of assets 608 632 -
Deficit for the year

(118 703 755)

{84 988 278}
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Accumuilated

Total net assefs

Figures in Rand surplus

Opening balance as previously reported 185 795 465 185 795 485

Adpustments

Correction of errors 1603 231 258 1603 231 269

Balance at 01 July 2011 as restated 1783026764 1785 026 764

Changes in net assats

Defickt for the year {84 988 278) (84 988 278)
Total changes {84 988 278) {84 983 278}
Opening balance as previously reported 671591 557 671 591 557

Adjustments

Correction of errors 1032 446 937 1032 446 937

Balance at 01 July 2012 as restated 1704 038 494 1704038494

Changes in net assets

Deficit for the year {118 703 755) {118 703 755}
Total changes {118 703 755) {118 703 755)
Balance at 30 June 2013 1585334739 1585334739
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Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand Notes 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Property rates and service charges 30456141 47 846 015
Government grants and subsidies 102 849 648 101 228 406
Interest received 7 514 847 9 166 555
Other receipts 17939114 8892 070
158 759 750 167 134 046
Payments
Employee related costs {65 657 488} {50 374 368}
Supgpliers {41 750 125) {57 188 639}
Finance charges {7 278 587} {7 862 228}
Ramunaration of councillors {5 440 9564} {5087 072}
{120 127 174) {120 522 357}
Net cash flows from operating activities 33 38 632576 46 611 689
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {34 499 173) (&5 160 546)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1244 818 -
Net cash flows from investing activities {33 254 355) {65 160 546)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment _z}f nan-currént barrowings {283 2%3}_ “
Finanes lease payments {2112 498} (1080872
Finance ledse récsipts 810985 -
Net cash flows from financing activities 115224 {1 060872}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5 493 445 {19 609 729}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year {2794 348} 16815 381
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ? 2 699 097 {Z 794 348}
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Accounting Policies

1. Statememt of compliance and basis of measurement

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accardance with Standards of Gererally Recognised Accounting Practice {GRAP)
including any interpretations, guidefines and directives issuad by the Accounting Standards Board and in accordance with section 122{3)
of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 {Act No. 55 of 2003L

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convention, except for loans and receivables and other financial instruments measured at fair value.

A summary of the significant accounting policies are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previcis pediod.

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

in praparing the annual financial staternents, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
presented in the annual financial statements and refated disclosures. Use of available infermation and the application of judgement is

inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the
annual financial statements,

The preparation of annuat financial statements in conformity with Standards of GRAP requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the municipality’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the annual
financial statements are disclosed in the relevant sections of the annuat financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions they may undertake in the future, actual results ultimately may differ
from those estimates. Significant judgements include:

Receivables and consumier debtors
The municipality assesses its receivables and consumer debtors for Impairment at the end of each reporting pericd. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, management makes judgements as to whether there is observable

data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impalrment for trade receivables Is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and
industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolia,

Allowance for slow mioving, damiaged and chisoléte stack

An allowance for stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have made estimates of the selling
price and direct cost to sefl of certain inventory items. The write down Is Included in the operation surpius or deficit note.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted macket prices at the end of the repotting period. The
quoted market price used for financial dssets held by the municipality is the current bid price.

Brovisions
Provistons were raised based on estimates determined by management or the information available. Additional disclosure of these
estimates of provisions are Included Inn note 19 - Provisions.

Useful ives of assets

The municipality's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for the moveable assets. This
estimate Is based on [ndustry norm, Management will iIncrease or decrease the depreciation charge whers useful lives are less than or
higher than the previcus estimated useful.

10
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Accounting Policies

1.1 Transfer of functions between entities under common control {continued}

Employee benefit obligations

The presant value of the post emplovee benefit obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post emplovee benefit ohiligations.

The actuaries determine the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year, This is the interest rate that should be used to
determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension cbiigations. in determining
the appropriate discount rate, the actuaries make reference to market yields at the year end date of South African long term bonds.
Other key assumptions for emploves benefits are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclused in Note 18,
Effective interest rate

The municipatity used the prime interast rate at year end to discount future cash flows,

1.2 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year,

The comparative figures have been restated, additional disciosures are included in note 43.

1.3 Presentation of currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand which is the Municipality 's functional currency. All financial
information has heen rounded to the nearest Rand.

1.4 Offsetting
Assets, Habilitles, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or permitted by & Standard of GRAP.
1.5 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration Le non-
exchange fransaction, then their costs are thelr fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventorias are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Nat realisabie value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations and the estimated costs necessaty to make the
sale, exchange or distribution,

Thie cast of Inventories comprises of ali costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition: :

The cést of inventorissis ass‘;g’rééd using the first-in, first-out [FIFO} formuia. The same cost formuta is used for ail nventorles having a
simfiar nature and use to the municipality.

When inventories arg soid, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the pericd in which the related
revenue i§ recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or related services
are renderad. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable valug or current replacerment cost and sl losses of
inventories are recognised as an expanse in the period the write-down or 1083 oogurs. The amount of apy reversal of any write-down of
ventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amsunt of
inventorias recognised as an expense in the period In which the reversal cocurs.

1.6 Other financial assets

Where the carrying amount of an investment i grester than the estimated recoverable amount, it is writtes down immadiately to s
recoverable amount and an lmpalement loss is charged to serplus or deficit,

11
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Annual Financial Staterments for the year ended 30 June 2013

Accounting Policies

1.6 Other financial assets {continued}
investments
fnvestmernts are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at cost.

At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the municipality has the expressed intention and ability to hold to maturity (heid-to-
maturity debt securities) are measured at amortised cost, less any impairment losses recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts, The
annual amortisation of any discount or premium on the acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated with over investment
income recelvable over the term of the instrument so that the revenue recognised in each period represents a constant yisid on the
nvestment.

mvestrments other than held-fo-maturity debt securities are classified as held for trading and are medsured at subseguent reporting
dates at fair value, based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. Where securities are held for trading purposes, unrealised
gains and losses are Included in surplus or deficit for the period.

1.7 Intangible assets

initial recognition

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it
is capable of baing separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either
individually or together with a related contract, assets or Hability; or
arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are transferable or separate from the
municipality or from other rights and obligations.

An intangibie asset is recognised when:
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to
the municipality; and
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measurad reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

The municipality recognises computer software cost as intangible assets if the costs are clearly associated with an identifiable and
unigue system controlled by the municipality and have a benefit exceeding one year.

An intangible asset acquired at no or nominal cost, Le non-exchange transaction, the cost shiall be its fair value as at the date of
acgutisition,

Subsequent measurement
Intangible assets dre subsequently carried at cost tess any accumulated amartisation and any impairmeant losses.

The amertisation peried and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporiing data,

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classifiéd as indefinite is an indicator that the asset
rigy Be impairad. As & result the 3ssetis tested for impalrieit dnd the temaining carrying amount fs amortised over its useful life,
Amortisation fs provided to write down thie intangible assets, on a stralght ling basis, to their residual values as follows:

Hem Estimated useful life in years
Computer software 5

intangible assets are derecognised:
on disposal; or
when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal procesds, f any, and the carrving amount. it is recognised in surplus or
deficit when the asset s derecognised.

12
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Accounting Policies

1.8 Investment property

initial recognition
tnvestment property is property {land or a building - or part of 2 building - or both} held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
hoth, rather than for:

use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

administrative purposes, or

sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Owner-occupied property Is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purpoeses and is
therefgre not investment property,

Property leased at less than commercial rates to achieve service delivery is held in production of servicas and is therefore not
investment property.

Investrent praperty Is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that are
associated with the investment property will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investmeant property can be
mieasured rellably.

tnvestment property is initially recognised at cost, Transaction costs are included In the initial measurement,

Where investment property is acquired at no cost or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. If a
replacemant part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Subseguent measurement

Investrent property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulatad impairment iosses.

Depreciation is provided to write down the cost, less estimated resigual value by equal instaliments over the useful iife of the property,
which is as follows:

ftem Estimated useful life
Property - land indefinite

Praperty - bulldings 7-80 years

Disposal

investment property Is deresognised on disposal or when the Irivestment proparty I8 permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits:

Gaing or losses aflsing from the retirgment or disposal of irvestment property are talculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of retiremant or disposal,

13
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013

Accounting Policies

1.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets {including infrastructure assets} that are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposas, and are expected to be used during more than one
peried.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost,

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the itam will fiow to the municipality; and
the cost of the itern can ba measurad reliably,

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
tocation and condftlon necessary for it to be capabie of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is zcquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, L.e non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of
acquisition.

When significant components of an itern of property, plant and eguipment have different usefui fives, thay are accounted for as
separate items {major components} of property, plant and equipment.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included in the
cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obiigation arises as a
result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an tem of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent cost

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than ane perlod are included in property, plant and
equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of property, plant and
equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and egquipment and costs incurred subsequently
to add to or replace part of. if a replacement cost 5 recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the
cartying arnount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an lter of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a reglacéinent in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous Inspiection dre derecognized.

Progarty, plar a‘ndiea;&i;gment is subsequently carried at cost less acourmulated deprediation and any impairment lassas.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as

cwned assets or, where shorter, the tarm of the relevant lease. Components of assets that ave significant in rélation to the

whole asset and that have different usefd! lves are deprecisted separataly.

Property, plant and equipment are deprecisted on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual
valye.

The useful fives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessad a3 follows:

ftem Estimated useful lifo in years

Vehicles, tractors and trajers 5.7

14
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013

Accounting Policies

1.9 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

infrastructure
Electricity network 10-80
Water network 10-80
Roads and bridges 750
Sanitation 7-8G
Soiid waste - Landfilis 15-75

Community

. Cemeteries 15-80
Livestock facilities 7-80
Municipal buildings 7-80
Parks and gardens 7-8G
Sport facilities 780

- Housing 7-80

Other plant and equipment
Computer eguipment 310
Office equipment 3-5
Furniture and fixtures 3-10
Other 3-10

Leased assets 3-5

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. if the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimata.

Reviewing the usefu! life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate untess expectations
differ from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and eguipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
Depreciation commences when the asset is ready for its intended use and ceases when the asset is derecognised.

frems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no furthar economic benefits
orservice potential expected from the use of the asset.

The galn or loss arlsing from the derecognition of an itém of property, plant and equipment 18 included in surplus or deficlt when the
ftermn is derecognised. The galn or kess arising from the derdcognition of én item of preperty, plant and equipment is determined as the
diffarence batween the net disposal proceads, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.10 Financial instrunients

A financial instroment is any Contract that gives rise to i financial asset of one entity dnd a financial Habiity of & residual nterest of
another entity, : : .

The athortised cost of 3 financial asset or Bnancial Hability [s the amount gt which the financial asset or financial lakiity is measured at
initial recognition minus printipal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative ameortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference betwaen that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction directly or through the use of an allowance
account for impalrment or uncolectibility.

The effective interest method is & method of calculsting the armortised cost of & financial asset or a financia! Tability {or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
intarest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash peymaents or receipts through the expected [ife of the fingndal
instrument or, when appropriate, 8 shorter perlod to the net canving amount of the financlal asset or financial ability,

Fair value s the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a lability settled, between knowledpeable willing parties inan anm’s
tenpth trarsaction,

15
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013

Accounting Policies

1.10 Firancial instruments {(continued}

A financial asset Is:
cash;
a residual interest of another entity; or
a contractuai right to:
. receive cash or another financial asset from another antity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial labilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to
the entity,

A financial Hability s any Hability that is a contractual obligation to:
defiver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
exchange financial assets orfinancial iabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourabie to the entity.

Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets {classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial
position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Other financial asset Financial asset measured at fair value
initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statemant of financial position when the entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

The entity recognises financial assets on the trade date,
{nitlal measuremeént of financial assets and financial liahilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial iability initially at #s fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acqudsition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
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1.10 Financial instruments {continued)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures ali financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
Financial instruments at fair value.
Financial instruments at amortised cost,

All financial agsets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impalement review,
Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair vaiue is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for & financial Instrument is ot active, the entity
astablishes fair value by using a valuation technigue. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the transaction
price would have been on the measurement date In an arm's length exchange motivated by normal operating considerations. Valuation
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the
current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and ogtion pricing models. if there
is a valuation technigque commonly used by markat participants to price the instrument and that technigue has been demonstrated to
provide reliable estimates of prices obtained In actual market transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation
technigue makes maximum use of market inputs and refies as little as possitle on entity-specific inputs. it incorporates all factors that
market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial
instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current
market transactions in the same instrument (Le. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market
data.

The falr value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on demand,
discounted from the first date that the amount could be reguired to be paid.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financia! liability measured at fair value is recognised in
surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amoertised cost or cost, a gain ot loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the
financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impalired, or through the amortisation process.
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1.10 Financial instruments {continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only whan!
. the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards-of ownership of the financial asset, has transferred
corntrol of the 3sset to another party and the other party has the practical 3bliity to seil the asset in its entirety to 2n
unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing t¢ impose additional restrictions
on the transfer. in this case, the entity:
- derecognise the asset; and
- recogrise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer,

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are alfocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on the
basis of their relative fair values af the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values at that date,
Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in
the period of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that quaklifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service the
financiaf asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the fee to be received is
not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the servicing obligation is
recogrised at its fair value. if the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a servicing
asset is recognisad for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allccation of the carrying amount of the larger
financiai asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new financial
asset or assuming & new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial iability or
servicing Hability at fair value,

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount aad the sum of the consideration
received i recognised in surplus or deficit,

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the previous
carrying amount of the larger financisl asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part thatis
derecognised, based on the refative fair valtes of those parts, onthe date of the transfer. For this purgose, a retained servicing asset is
tréated as a part that continuesto be recognised, The difference bgtween the carrying amount allocated to the part derecagnised and
the sum of the consideration retelved for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If & trarisfer does hot result in derecognition becausa the antity has retained substantially afl the risks and rewards of ownership of the
transferred asset; the entity contiius to rec:egmsa the traasferreé asdatih t5 entirety and fecognise a financial Habiliey for the

considerstion received: In subbeguent pema’cs, the ent;ty regognises any revenue onthe wransferréd asset and gy gxpense icurred on
the financial liability. Naithér the ssset, and the assoclated Habildy nor the révenue, aid the associated expenses are offset,

Fregentation

interest refating to 2 financial instrument or a component that Is a financlal liabiifty Is recognised as revenue or expense In surplus or
deficit,

Dividends or sirsilar distributions relating to & financial instrurment or a component that is a financial lability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit,

Losses and galns relating o a financial instrument or 3 component that i3 a financlal Hability s recognised as revenus or expense in
surptus of defici,
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1.11 impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the municipality with the primary obiective of generating a commercial return. When
an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, # generates a commercial return.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a commerdial return
that genarates cash inflows from continuing use that are fargely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets,

Recoverable amount of an asset or 2 cash-gensrating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to self and its value in use.
Identification
When the ¢arrying amount of a cash-generating dsset excéeds {5 recoverable amount, it is impalred.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impairad.  any
such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the assel.

Value in use

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from
continuing use of the asset and from its uitimate disposal and the municipality applies the appropriate discount rate 1o those future
cash flows.

Basis for estimates of future cash flows

v measuring value in use the municipality: _
base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent managernant's best estimate of the
ranige of economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the asset. Greater weight is given to external
avidance;
base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financial budgets/forecasts; but excludes any estimated future cash
inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructuring's or from improving or enhancing the asset's performance.
Projections based on these budgets/forecasts covers a maximum period of five years, unless a longer period can be
lustified; and
estimate cash flow projections heyend the périod covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by extrapolating the
proféctions based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequant years, unless an
Increasing rate can he justified. This growth rate does notexceed the fong-term average growth raté for the products,
industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the matket in which the asset is used, unless a higher
rate caft be justified.

Composition of afstimat.e; of f_utu re cash flows

Egtimatey of ’ftitﬂfe (:ash ﬂaws mcwde
;‘3!0_53{2*{%0{%5 of cagh inflows frogy the continuing use of the dsset;
pw;a;f;mmf cashoutflows that arg necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from continding use of the asset
(intlading cach cutflows to prepare the dssat for use) and can be divectly attrbuted, or aliocated oa a réasonable and
consistent basis, to the assets and
net cash flows, i any, to be recaived {or pald) for the disposal of the asset st the end of its useful life.

Estimates of future cash flows exclude:
cash inflows or sutflows from flaancing activities; and
ncome tax receipls or paymaents,

The estimate of net cash flows to be recelved (or paid) for the disposal of an assat at the end of its useful Bfe is the smount that the
murscipality exgects to obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties,
after deducting the estimated costs of disposal,
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1.11 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued}
Discount rate

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valus of money, represented by the current risk-
free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

Recognition and measurement {individual asset}

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is lass than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverabile amount. This reduction is an impairment loss,

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit,

When the amount estimatad for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to which it relates,
the municipality recognises a Hiability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairmant loss, the depreciation {amortisation} charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its rasidual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its
remaining useful fife.

Cash-generating units

if there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the municipality determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit}).

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless a change is justified.

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the cash-
genarating unit is determined.

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-genarating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than thé carrying amount of the
unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a pro rata basis, based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as impairment losses on individual
assets.

in atiocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:
g its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
its valug inuse {f determinable); and
1870,

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been aflocated to the asset is sllocated pro rata to the other cash-
generating assets of the unit. :

Whare a non-cash-generating astet contributes to a cash-generating unlt, a proportion of the carrying amount of that rion-cash- o
generating asset & allocated to the carrying smount of the cash-generating uniit prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-ganerating unit.
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1.11 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)
Reversal of impairment loss

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a
cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable
amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset s revarsed if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss, The increased carrying amount of an asset
attributable to & reversalof an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined {net of
depreciation or amortisation} had no impairment loss beer recognised for the asset in prior peridds.

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase,

After 3 reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation {(amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value {if any), on a systematic basis over
s remaining useful iife,

A reversal of an Impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with the
carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for individual
assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service potential to a cash-
generating unit.
In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrving amount of an asset is not increased above the
lower of:

its recoverable amount {if determinable}; and

the carrying amount that would have been determined {net of amortisation or depreciation} had no impairment foss been

recognised for the asset in prior periods.,

The amount of the reversal of the impairment foss that would otherwise have been aliocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit.

1.12 Impairment of noi-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assels held by the municipality with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. When
an asset is deploved in @ manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return,

Kon-cash-generating assets ave assets other than casb-genera%ing agsets.
ldentification
Whenthe carryingamount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it IS impaired.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date vwihethier there is any indication that & non-cash-genarating asset may be impdired. if
any such indication &dists, the muriicipality Bitimates the recoverable service amount of the asset,
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1.12 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets {continued)

Value in use

The present value of the remaining service potential of an asset Is determinad using the following approach:
Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated replacement cost
of the agset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect
the asset in its used condition, An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication} of the existing asset or through
replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of
the assat, whichever is lower, less accumulited depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumad or
expired sarvice potential of the asset.

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the municipality
would not replace or reproduce the asset with a itke asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacity
asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are
assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to maet the demand for goods or services the asset provides. The determination of
the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis thus reflects the service potentia! required of the asset.

1.13 Tax

Value added tax {VAT)

The municinality accounts for VAT on the cash basis. The municipality is liable to account for VAT at the standard rate (14%) in terms of
section 7 {1} {a) of the VAT Act in respect of the supply of goods or services, except where the supplies are specifically zero-rated in

terms of section 11, exempted in terms of section 12 of the VAT Act or are scoped out for VAT purposes. The municipality accounts for
VAT on a monthly basis.

1.14 leases

Alease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substartially all the risks and rewards Incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as
an operating lease i it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidentat to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and bulidings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately,

Finance leases - lassee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and fiabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the
leased propenty of, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor Is Included in
the statement of financial position as a finance lease Hiability,

The discount fate used in caleutating the present value of the minkmut lease paymments is the Intérest rate Inapligit in the lease.

Minimuin lease payments dre apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the cutstanding Hability. The finance charge is
allocated th each period during the ledse term 50 a< to produce 2 constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the:liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period i which thay are incurred.

1.15 Employee benefits

Short-term empioyes benefits

The cost of shortterm employee benefits, [those payvable within 12 months after the service is readered, such as pald annual leave and
sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and

are not discounted,

The sxpectad cost of compensated absences is recognisad 2s an expense as the emplovees render services that increase thelr
entitiernent or, o the case of non-acoumulating absences, when the shsence oocurs.
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1.15 Emplovee benefits (continued)
Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due,

Payrnents made to industry-managed or state plans retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans where the
entity’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arlsing in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is defermined using the projected unit credit valuation method as prescribed
by 1A 18,

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and are otherwise amortised on a
straight line basis over the average pericd untif the amended benefits become vested.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period that they occur.

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or 2l of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation. in surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a
reimbursement.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit chiigation as adjusted
for unrecogrised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs.

1.16 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions ate recognised when:
the municipafity has 2 present obligation as a result of a past event;
it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be reguired to settle the
obligation; and
a reliable estimate can he made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be reguired to seftle the present obligation at the
reporting date.

Whare the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the ohligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of monaey and the risks spécific to the
Hability:

Whare some dr all of the expenditure required to settle 3 provision is expectad to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbutsement
isrecognised w&t&n, and onty when, it is irfualt Iy certain that reimbursement will be raceived i the misnicipality seles the ﬂbhgation
The reimbursement fs treated a3 4 separate assst. The amount recognised far the reimblirsement does not exceed the amount of the
ps’mf&szen.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. A provision Is reversed i it s no longer
srobable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settie the obligation.

Where discounting is usad, the carrying amount of g provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is
recognised as an interest expansa in surplus or deficit.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
A restructuring provision Includes only the direct expendifures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:

necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
not associated with the ongolng activities of the municipality
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1.16 Provisions and contingencies (continued}

No obligation arises as 3 consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the sale or transfer,
that Is, there is a binding arrangement.

Contingent assets and contingent labilities ara not recognised, except in entity combinations. Contingencies are disclosed in note 41,

After their Initial recognition, contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are subsequently measured at the higher of:
the amourt that would be recognised as a provision and
the amourt initially recognised less cumnulative amortisation,

Decornmissioning, restoration and similar Hability

Changes in the measurement of an existing decormmissioning, restoration and similar Hability that result from changes in the estimated
timing or amount of the outflow of rescurces embodving ecenamic banefits or service potential required to settle the obligation, or a
change in the discount rate, is accountad for as follows:

if the related asset is measured using the cost model:
. changes in the liabliity are added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the current period.

the amount deducted from the cost of the asset does not exceed its carrying amount. If a decrease in the liability exceeds
the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
if the adiustrment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the entity consider whether this is an indication that the new
carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable, if there is such an indication, the entity tests the asset for
impairment by estimating its recoverable amoust or recoverable service amount, and accounting for any impairment loss,
in accordance with the accounting policy on impalrment of assets as described in accounting policy 1.11 and 1,12,

The periodic unwinding of the discount is recognised in surplus or deficit as 2 finance cost as it oceurs.

1,17 Site restoration and dismantiing cost

The muricipality has an obligation tc dismantle, remove and restore items of property, plant and equipmaent. Such obligations are
referredto as “decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities’. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes the
initial estimate of the costs of disrnantling and removing the itern and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which
an municipality incurs either when the item is acquirad or as a consequence of having used the item during a particufar period for
purposes other than te produce inventorias during that period.

1.18 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic: beaeﬂts ar service pctenttal during the reporting period when those infiows result in an
incredse in net assets othier than increasss relating to contributions from bwrars,

An exchange transaction is ohe In which the munlcipality regelves assets of services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly ghves
aﬁproxrmateh; equa vahe (g}rsmaniy in t?xe f»:;rm of gasds, gemceﬁ or e of ass&zs} to the ether pany in exchange

Eairvalue 8 the amount for which A assét could be exc_?zanggé, oF & liabiliey sartled, betwean knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s
length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue s measured at the fair value of the consideration recsived or recelvable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
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1.18 Revenue from exchange fransactions (continued)
Rendering of services

When the cutcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the
transaction s recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The ocutcome of a transaction
can be estimated reliably when aill the following conditfons are satisfied:

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the municipality;

the stage of compietion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

the costs incurred for the transaction and the ¢costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably,

When services aré performed by an indetermindte agmber of atts over 2 specified time frame, revenue i§ recognised on a straight line
hasis over the specified time frame unless there s evidence that some other method better reprasents the stage of completion. When a
specific act is much morse significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion is
determined by services performed 1o date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Use by others of the entity's assets
Ravenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding Interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is recognised
when:
It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the municipality,
and
The amount of the revenue can be measured relizhly.
Intarest Is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest method.

Royalties, auction fees and recoveries are recognised as they are garned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Dividends, or their eguivalents are recognised, in surpius or deficit, when the municipality’s right to recalve payment has been
established.

1.19 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Meon-exchangé transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an municipality either
recelves value from another municipality without directly giving approximately egual valua In exchange, or gives value to another
ruicipality without directly récelving approximately equal vdlue in exchange.

Recognition

An inflow o resourcas from gnon-exchange fransaction racognisad 35 an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that &
tability Is alse recogrised in respect of the same inflow:

As the muriicipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a ability In raspact of an Inflow of resources from s non-exchangs
tranpsaction racognisad as an asset, & reduces the carrving amound of the Hability recogniyed and recognises an amount of revenue
egual fo that reduction,
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1.19 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Measurement

Revenue from & non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the municipality.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municigality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is alse required to recognise a liability, Where a
liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a lability is subsequently reduced,
because the taxabie event occurs or a condition Is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the Hability is recognised as revenue,
Finas

Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the criteria for recognition as an
asset.

Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the municipality,

Where the municipality collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine wili not be revenue of the coliecting entity,

1.20 Conditional grants and receipts

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the municipality has
compifed with all of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or
obligations have not been met 2 liabifity is recognised.

1.21 Investment income

tnvestment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurrad.

1.23 Capital commitments

A capital commitment Is an agreement to undertake capiial expenditure in future, which has not yet became an actual Hahility. Capital
commitments are not recognised but only discloded. Capital commitments are disclosed in fote 40,

1.24 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised gxpenditure means:
overspending of a vote or.a main division within 2 vote; and
. exgenditure not v accordance with the purpose of 3 vote of, in the case of a maln division, not i accordance with the
purgose of the main dw;smn

Al expenditurs rola ating to unauthorised éxpentiture s remgmsed 3% an éxpensa in the surphis or deficit in the year thetf the
expenditure was thétrred. The expenditure is classified in acchrdance with the nature of the expehse, and where recovered, Bis
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.25 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
fruitiess expendiiure means expendinire which was made in valn and would have been avoided had reasonabile care been exercised.
Al expenditure relating to-Truitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit in the year that the

expenditure was incurred, The sxpenditure Is classiffed in atcordance with the nature of the expense, and subsequently where
recoversd, i sccounted for as revenus in the statement of financial performance,
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1.26 trregular expenditure

irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municips! Finance Management Act {Act No 56 of 2003}, the Municipal
Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act {Act No. 20 of 1998} or is in contravention of the economic entity’s
supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorisad expenditure. rregular expenditure is accounted for as
expenditure in the surplus or deficit and subseguently where recovered, it is accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial
Parformance,

1.27 Budget information

Municipality are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisation's {or equivalent), which is
given effect through authonising legislation; appropriation or similar.

General purpose finandial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted
amaounts for the reporting period have been included in the annual financial statements,

The Statement of comparative and actual information have been included in the annual financial statements as the recommended
disclosura when the annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting as determined by National
Treasury.

1.28 Related parties

The municipality operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in Scuth Africa, only entities
within the local sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Key management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, including those
charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with legisiation, in instances where they are required to perform such

functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that managemeant in their dealings with the municipality.

Only transactions with refated partiés not at armt's lerigth of not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed,
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1.28 Public private partnerships {PPP's)
Tha municipality have the folfowing PPP's:

The municipality appointed Rural Maintenance {Pty} Ltd in respect of managemeant, operation, administration, malntenance and
expansion of the municipal network, inclusive of the revenue management process, as well as the implementation of a regional
etectrification programme {“the project”). Rural will take over the operation of the existing/initial assets ["network assets”) and will aiso
instail new assets {“investment asset”), Rural will be aliowed to commission the electricity generation plant for own generation and sale
to consumars {“the public”) of electricity. The contract further stipulates the leve!l of service Rural is to adhere to as the contractis a
service level agreement. From the takeover date, any loss or profit associated with the project shall be for the account of Rural. The
ownership of the network shall remain vested in the Municipality and the Municipality will bear the risk of loss relating to the network
and shaif ensure thers is appropriately insurance cover in that regard. The ownership of the investment assets remains with Rural till
the end of tha contract.

At the end of the contract, the ownership of the investment assets will transfer to the Municipality. In the event that the contract is
terminated by Rural during the term of the agreement, ownership of the investment assets will transfer to the Municipality at no cost
to the Municipality (i.e. the assets will become the sole and paid up property of the Municipality). Rural shall pay to the Municipality a
monthiy royalty for tha use of the Network, The amount of the monthly royaity will be based on the bulk use of electricity. The amount
of the monthly royalty shall be fixed except with regards to annual ratas increases. Rural shall be entitled from takeover date to collect,
directly from consumers all monies due for ail services rendered and other payments due from consumers (i.e. Invoices and statements
will be in the name of Rurall, However, the charges collected for electricity consumption and related services are regulated and
appraoved by NERSA. Al municipal emplovess associated with electricity distribution shali be seconded to Rural and Rural shali bear
responsibility for such employees during the term of the agreement. in the event that the employees are seconded to Rural, Rural shall
transfer cost to company amounts to the Municipality for the payment of such employees on a monthiy basis.

The agreement shali terminate at the end of the 25th year. The contract can be renegotiated 2 years from axpiry of the term. In the
event that the Municipality cancels the agreement prior to the 25th period without any material breach, the Municipality will be liable
for compensation in respect of all demonstrable losses and damages including but not limited to, loss of future Income as well as
market-related compensation in respect of the equipment. At any time during the term of the agreement Rural may cancel the
agreement by giving 1 years notice to the Municipallty, whergupon all equipment will become the sole and exclusive paid-up property
of the Municipality.

The municipality accounts for PPP's in accordance with the ASE PPP guideline when it controls the underlying asset. Control over the
underlying asset is evidenced by the following:

The municipality controls or regulates the services the private party must provide with the associated asset, to whom i rmust provide
them and at what price;

The municipality contrels through ownership, beneficial entitiement or otherwise, any significant residus! interest in the asset at the
end of the agreement.

Where the arréng‘em&nt falls within the scope of the PPP ghideling, the murcipality applies the following accodnting:

Thé underiying assets in thé arrangefnent are recognised by the municipality:
Aty unitary ﬁagments made, are sphit betwaen the asset and service element;
The mmmpa 1‘t§£ remgms&s a ?sab:it*‘y wiii} respact to :ts stﬁigaz onth the private entity (in the form of & financis! i:abah‘cy where the
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Figures in Rand

2013

2012

2. New standards and interpretations

2.1  Standards and interpretations effective and adopted In the current year

In the current vear, the municipality has adopted the following standards that are effective for the current financiat year and that are

relevant to

Standards:

its operations:

GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

GRAP 24: Presentation of Budget information in the Financial
Statements

GRAP 103: Heritage Assets
GRAP 21: impairment of non-cash-generating assets

GRAP 26: Impairment of cash-generating assets

GRAP 104: Financial Instruments

2.2 standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

Effective date:
Yeats beginhing on or after

01 April 2012

01 Aprit 2012

a1 April 2012

01 April 2012

01 April 2012

0% Aprit 2012

Expected impact:

The imgpact is not matertal but
has resulted in additional
disclosures,

The impact is net material but
has resulted in additional
disclosuras.

The impact is not material.
The impact is not material.
The impact is not material but
has resultad in additional
disclosures.

The impact is not materiat but

has resulted in additional
disclosures.

The municipality has not applied the following stahdards and interpretations, which have been published and are'mandatory for the
municipality’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2013 or later périods:

Standards:

GRAP 18: Segment Reparting

GHAP 25: Employee benefits
GRAP 108 Transfers of functions between entities under
common controt

GHAP 106: Transfers of functions betwesn entities not under
commaon controt

Effective date:
Years beginning on or after

Not yet determined

01 Aprit 2013
Mot vet determined

Mot yat detarmined

Expected impact!

rilikely that the standard wilf

Have & materlal impact but

will result in additional
disclosures:

Unlikely that the standard will
have & material impact.

Unlikely that the standard will
have & materfal impact.

Uniikely that the standard will
have & material impact.
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2.  New standards and interpretations {continued}
GRAP 167 Mergers Not yet determined

GRAP 20: Related parties Not yet determined

Uniikely that the standard will
have a material impact.

Uniikely that the standard will
have a material impact but
will result in sdditional
disclosuras.
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Figures in Rand 2013 2012

3. inventories

Consumable stores 595 875 390 687

Water in reservoirs and pipelines 233125 288204
829 000 678 891

Inventory pledged as security

No inventory itemns were pledged as security for any financial liabilities.

4,  Dther financial assets

toans and receivables

VKB Agriculture Limited - Short term member ioan 8573 1202

The member loan bears interest at 4.5% per annum {2012: 5%} and is available on

demand.

VKB Agriculture Limited - Security member loan 109 483 104 646

When the member fund awards mature after 15 years it is transferred to the member

loan account. The loan serves as security against the trading account, The loan bears

interest at 4.5% (2012: 5%) per annum and is payable on demand after settling any

outstanding balance on the trading account.

VKB Agriculture Limited - Member funds 217 276 183610

The member funds arises from awards earned by members basad on purchases.

Awards do not earn interest or dividends and have a 15 year maturity life and are then

transferred to the security member loan,

VK8 Agricuiture Limited - Member deposit 5000 500G

The membership deposit was pald to open a trading account and hecome a member,

The receivable do not earn interest nor dividends and is repayable when membership is

cancelled.

VKB Agricufture Limited - Reserves 79335 79 338

The resarvés arises from special awards aflocated to members. Special awards do not

eary interest or dividends and have a 15 year maturity Bfe and are then transferréd o

the security member loan,
417 667 373 793

Non-current asséts

Loans and receivables 286 611 262 945

Current assets

Loans and recelvables 121056 110 8248
ai7 667

373793
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Figures in Rand 2013 2012

4, Qther financia! assets (continued)

Loans and receivables impaired

There are no loans and receivables impaired for the current or prior reporting period.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of the loans and receivables.

The municipality does not hold any collaterat a3 security.

5.  Receivables from éxchange transactions

Councillor overpayments receivable 1817428 2533340

Other receivables® 228690 -

Sundry receivabies 4 400 134 159

2050519 2 667 499

Receivables pledged as security

None of the receivables were pledged as security for any financial llability.

*Royalty income and salary recoveries receivable from Rural Maintenance (Pty) Ltd.

6.  Consumer debtors

Gross balances

Rates 15833 152 12 845529

Electricity 4418512 6023737

Water 45 663 597 37026531

Sewerage 37 707 897 28628 386

Refuse 34 775 235 25924 687

Other 31017 395 23861077
169 415 788 133 709947

Less: Provision for debt impalrment - '

Rates ' {12 746285} (9 137 307)

Eledtricity {3 409.403) (4139 128}

Witer {35053 125} {25,150 848}

Sewerage {29 096 086) {19 282 857}

Refuse {26 833 192) {17 790 257)

Other {23933 575) {16395 811}

{130 571 666}

{91 896 208)
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6. Consumer debtors {continued)

Net balance
Rates 3586 867 3708 222
Electricity 1009 108 1 884 609
Water 10610472 11875683
Sewerage 86113811 8745529
Refuse 7 542 043 8134 430
Other 7083820 7 465 266
38 844 122 41813 739
Ageing
Rates
Current {0 -30 days) 1812807 1816 764
31 - 60 days 621 213 732 483
&1 - 80 days 630 171 705 707
91 days + 12798 961 S$ 590 57G
15833 152 12845529
Electricity
Current {0 -30 days) - 5658
31 - 60 days - 8185
61 - 90 days - 18 791
91 days + 4418512 5991 103
4 418 512 6023 137
Water
Current {0 -30 days) 3243773 3 003 339
3160 days 1115738 1567501
61 - 90 days 1507 172 847 916
91 days+ 39 581 407 31 183 662
‘tnmeterad consumption 235 507 424 313
45 663 597 37026531
Sewerage
Current {F -30 days] 2112078 2173 4407
31 - 60 days 61131 924 780
£1 - 90 days 956 557 926 050
a1 davs + 33 678033 24 056 139

37 707 897
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6. Consumer debtors {continued)

Refuse

Current {0 -30 days} 1804 025 1324 808

31 - 60 days 885 828 849 160

61 - 50 days 885 4593 853 847

31 days + 31099 823 22 296 871
34 775235 25 924 687

Other

Current {0 -30 days} 2264064 1 880434

31 - 60 days 1474593 884471

61 - 90 days 1846 167 894 073

91 days + 26632571 20202 098
31017 395 23 861077

Reconciliation of provision for debt impairment

Balance at beginning of the year {91 896 208} {85 771 168}

Contributions to provision {39 413 426) {8456 323)

Debt written off against provision 737 968 2331282

Consumer debtors pledged as security

No consumer debtors were pledged as security for any financial Hability.

{130 571 666}

{91 896 208)
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7. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand - 61021

Bank balance 2414 968 -

Call and short-term deposits 284 131 268509

Bank overdraft - (3124 278}
2 699 097 {2 794 348}

Current assets 2 699097 329930

Current liabilitles - (3124278}
2699 097 {2 794 348)

Securities:

Combined first Continuous Covering Maertage Bond (CCMB) for R 1 500 000 over erf 150 and 152 Villiers and the remaining extension of

erf 915 Frankfort.

The municipality had the following bank accounts:

Account number and description

ABSA - Primary chegue account -
40-5282-3517

ABSA - Call account - Savings - 80-
%011-1270

ABSA - Cali actount - Friends of the
poot - $1-2961-8782

ABSA - Lall account - Operation
Hiasely - $2-3238-7538

ABSA - Deposit actotnt - 20-6681-
9552

Yotal

Bank statement balances

Cash book bhalances

30 June 2013 30june 2012  30Jupe 2011 30June 2013 30June 2012 30Jjune 2011
2349 950 647 061 1935 468 2414966 (3124278) 16588527
2276 55 056 9579 2228 55 056 9679
118 738 48913 28761 119738 48913 28761
2308 12 160 11 860 2308 12 160 11 860
159 éé‘l | 152 780 1;45 602 155 861 152 780 145 602
"2 634 081 310970 2131370 2699087 (2855369) 1678442

as



Mafube Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2013 2012
8.  investment property
2013 2012
Cost Accumuiated  Carrying value Cost Accumuylated  Carrving value
degreciation depreciation
Investment property 47 150 384 {2 282 098) 44 868 286 47 150 384 (1901 749) 45248635
Reconciliation of investment property - 2013
Opening balance Depreciation Total
investment property 45 248 635 {380 349} 44 868 286
Reconciliation of investment property - 2012
Opening balance Depreciation Total
Investment property 45 628885 {380 350} 45 248 635
Fair value of investment properties 80052 955 75951 570
Pledged as security
Mo investment property was pledged as securlty for any financial liability.
9. Property, plant and equipment
2013 2012
Ca‘sf Accumulated  Carrying value Cost Accupulated 'cérfviﬁg value
depreciation depreciation
Community... 173680243 (33960743} 139719500 . 172751130 (28103071} 144648049
Infrastructure 2080564849 (B37410741) 1452154308 2089564849  (5249925599) 1564572350
Laridfil rehabilitation asset 2564 0 % 525} 2852475 2964 000 {i76 360} 2687640
Leased assets - 2510965 {346 631} 2164 334 2853 483 {2 119 774) 773708
Gher plant and squipment 1717854 {478 950 1248 904 %}5’9 819 {200 365] FaG 454
Vahicles, tractors and traiters 12 109 567 {1933 526} 10 186 041 12674038 {369 33%} 13 304 705
Wark in progress 72983379 - 72893 379 43555 388 - 43 55% 3538
Totat 2 355 540 857 2A6 402707 (SB6U61502) 1770341205

(674 424 116] 1681 116 741
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9. Property, plant and equipment {continued}
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2013
Opening balance  Additions Disposals Depreciation impairment foss Total

Community 144 648 049 829123 - {5 857 672) “ 138719500
infrastructure 1564572250 - - 112418142 - 1452154 108
Landfill rehabifitation asset 7 687 640 - - {35 165} - 2852475
ieased asiets 773 708 2510865 - (627 241} {192 899} 2164 334
Other property, plant and 795 454 755 154 {26 433) {275 918} (9353} 1246904
aguipment
Vehicles, tractors and trailers 13304 705 464 164 {774 312) {2216 011} {997 505} 10 186 041
Work in grogress 43555 398 29437981 - - - 72593379

1770341205 34 506 387 {800 745) {121 730 349) {1 199757} 1681116741
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2012

Opening balance  Additions Transfers Depreciation Total
Community 150505771 - - (5857672} 144 648049
Infrastructure 1667 182 148 - 9409188 {312 019086} 1584572 250
Landfili rehabilitation asset 2372984 377 308 - {62 653} 2 BR7 840
Leased assets 11352406 - - {578.697} 773708
Cther property, plant and eguipment 115414 812970 - {128 930} 799 454
Vehicles, tractors and trailers 28T FLT 13 182 490 - (125512} 13 304 705
Work in progress 11 585 847 43 368 584 {4 409 188} - 43 555 398
1833372397 55 741 358 - {118 772550} 1770341205

Pledged as security

No property, pl
over the ledsed assets #s set outin note 13

Assets subject o finaéﬁae lease et ca?ry?_ng amount) - .

Leaséd assats

ant and equipment was pledged a3 sécrnity for any financial ability. Leased assets are secured by the lessor's charge

2 164 934
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10,  Intangible assets
2013 2012
Cost Accumulated  Carrying value Cost Accumulated  Carrying value
amortisation amaortisation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impalrient impairment
Computer software 1747 397 {1747 397) - 1747 397 {1544 897} 202 500
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2013
Opening balance Amortisation Total
Computer software 202 500 {202 500} “
Reconciliation of intangibie assets - 2012
Opening balance Amortisation Total
Computer software 531979 {325 479) 202 500

Pledged as security
No intangible asset was pledged as security for any financial liabifity,

Other information

The capltaiised computer software was estimated £ have x fiaite fife of & vears at acquisition. The software is amertised using the

stralght-ling method over a period of 5 years.
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11. Financial assets by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the items below
2013
Loans and Total
receivables
Other financialassels » Current 1231 056 121056
Other financial asséts - Non-current 296 511 296 611
Raceivables from exchange transactions 2050519 2080519
Cash and cash equivatents 2 599 057 2689097
Consumer debtors 38 844 122 38 844 122
44 011 405 44 011 405
2012
ioans and Total
receivables
Other financial assets - Current 110 848 110848
Other financial assets - Noa-current 262 545 262 945
Receivables from exchange transactions 2 867 499 2 667 489
Cash and cash equivalents 3298 630 329 930
Consumer debtors 41 813 739 41 813 73%
45 184 961 45 184 961
12, Non-current borrowings
Held at amortised cost
DBSA - 61006563 2255132

2077174

Theloanis frﬁm the Development Bank of Southern Africa {(DESA} and repaymenty are payable on a 3 monthly §>a3§s in eguat
ansta%imenﬁ§ The f‘edampmorz date is 31 Dacernber 202 End the lean bears interest at & fixed rate of 5% {2012 5%§ on the loar apd 7%

{20’12 T en ar;ears

The mz}nid‘gaﬁw defaulted on the repayment terms, the balance of the arrear account s R 141 061 (2012: R 140 661).

Non-current labitities

At amortised cost 1782 745 1931 835

Current liabilities

At amortised cost 324 428 323297
2077174 2255132
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13. Finance lease Habilities
finimum lease payments due
- within one year 865 793 1379391
- in second to fifth year inclusive 1528173 366 380
2494 866 1745 771
Less: Future finance charges {230 762} {176 873}
Present value of minium lease payments due 2204 704 1568 898
Present value of minimum lgase payments dug
- within one year 790 164 1213540
- i second to fifth year inclusive 1414540 355 358
2204 704 1 568 898
Norn-current Labilities 1414 %40 355 358
Current liabilities 790 164 1213 540
2204704 1 568 898

The municipality lease photo copier machines under finance lease. The lease term is 3 years and the average effective borrowing rate is
9.5% {2012: 15.5%). The interest rate Is linked to prime at the contract date, All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangemants

have been entered into forcontingent rent.

The municipality's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets to the carrying value of R 2

164 334 (2012: R 773 709} as per note 9.

The municipality did not default on the repayments during the current or péicr reporting period. No terms and conditions

were renegotiated.

14, Payables from exchange transactions

13th Cheque decrual*

Accrued expanses

Accrusd Staff leave days

Kidvance payable*
Auditor-Ganerat

Department of Water Affairs (DWA)
Electsicity payable**#

Eskom

Iincorme received it advance™*™*
{thar payables

Pra-payrments received from consumer debtors
Retention's on comtract craditors
Saldry control accounts

Trade pavables

1 290479 1135183
2749 411 8379147
5288 611 5201775
7224600 -
1180 167 1596 352
49 254153 IR BEG 4TS
7512 550 2 456 882
37250 631 43 512 051
& 730 802 723 445
10164 12 160
10 269 635 11 388 853
1583097 3377 618
1073138 {15 819 318}
11 936 615 G 750 464

143 364 662

117 788 607

40



Mafube Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the yvear ended 30 June 2013

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2013 2012

14. Payables from exchange transactions {continued)
The Municipality defaulted on the payment of suppliers within the legisiative 30 days.

*Annual 13th cheque bonuses are paid to all municipal staff in thelr month of birth, excluding Section 57 managers. The balance at vear
- end represents the portion of the bonus which has vested with regards to the current salary from month of birth up untif year end.

*¥The Municipality received an advance from Rural Maintenance [Pty Ltd on 28 June 2013, the advance was repaid after the reporting
period on 13 July 2013,

**¥Baing the municipal electricity usage on municipal bulldings, street fights, traffic lights, pumps etc. owing 1o the service provider
Rural Mairtenande (Pty) Ltd,

*EE3The Municipality Is recelving an inflow of resources in the form of electricity assets from Rural Maintenance {Pty) Lid, without
having delivered on its portion of the exchange.

15. VAT payable

VAT payable 8 183525 11216 466

The Municipality is registered on the cash basis for VAT purposes, this means VAT is only declared once cash is recelved or actual
payment is made.

VAT returns were not timeously submitted by due date throughout the current or prior reporting period. Penalties and interest charged
on late submission were accountad for and disclosed as fruitless and wasteful expenditure,

16, Consumer deposits

Water 702 102 684 D69

No guarantees afe held In lieu of consumer deposits.
17, Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and recelpts comprises of:

_uns;mret mnéstienai grams and recaipls

; 438602

; : : 7241447 0 B144218
Mumama% mfsas%rattu T gfaﬁ% { M ﬁ} 7152429 o -
Municipal systems improvement grant (MSIG) - CA85 191
14 393 876 7068 011

The balances wilt be recognised as revenue when the qualifying expenditure is incurret]. See note 26 for detall of other grants received
from other spheres of government,

No grants were withbeld due to urfulfilled conditions for the current and prior reporting period.
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18. Employee bensfits
Post-retirement medical aid plan

The municipality has a post employment medical aid fund for its pensioners, where the empiloyer subsidy policy is 60% of the total
contribution payable for the principal member and spouse where applicable, until the time of death of the princips! member. These
post-retirament medical aid benefits are in accordance with Resolution 8 of the South African Loca! Government Bargaining Council
{SALGBC) which was signed on 17 January 2003,

Long service banefits
The municipality's ability for lohg-service leave benefits relating to vested leave benefits to which emplayees may bécorme entitied
upon completion of five years's service and every five years thereafter. These leave benefits are in accordance paragraph 11 of the

South African Local Government Bargaining Councit {SALGBC] collective agreement on conditions of service for the Free State division
of SALGBC which was signed on July 2010,

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Carrying value
Prasent value of the defined benefit ohiigations 11474 814 10 947 945

These obligations are not a funded arrangement, i.e. no separate assets have been set aside currently to meet these obligations.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening balance 10 947 545 $ 624 299
Benefits paid and contributions made {213 755) {592 873}
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 1440624 1916 519
Closing balance 11474314 10947 945

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

Service cost 517822 453040
Intérest cost #23 289 B0 a0
Actuarial loss recognised 99 413 662669
Total included in employee related costs 1440624 1916519

Calculation of actuarial gains and iossés

Actuarial loss — Obligations 95413 662 66Y

42




Mafube Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2013 2012

18. Employee benefits {continued)

Key assumptions used

Discount rate 7.75 % FIT
Medical aid inflation rate 6.75 % 6,27 %
Salary escalation rate 6.25 % 577 %

Benafit levels, for active members the projected contributions were used at retirement for their current scheme option and for
pensioner rembers thelr current scheme option as at 1 January 2013,

Retirement age, it has been assumed that both male and female members retire at age 65. No allowance has been made for early
retirement either due to i health or at the option of the member.

Continuation on medical aid at retirement, it was assumead that all surviving members 1o retirement will continue their medical aid
membership in retirement.

Pre retirement, mortality of continuation members and withdrawal rates are in accordance with $A85-90 male and female tables.

Post retirement, mortality of continuation members and withdrawal rates are in accordance with PA{90) ultimate male and female
tables with a 2 year reduction in age, assuming that there s a 4 year age difference between male and female spouse.

The valuation is based on the Projected Unit Credit valuation method, as prescribed by 1AS 19.
Other assumptions
Assumed medical inflation rate has a significant effect on the amounts recogrised in surplus or deficit. A one percentage point change

in assumed medical aid inflation rate would have the following effects:

One percentage One percentage

point increase point decrease
increase in defined beneflt obligation 805 944 {777 595)
tncrease in service and interdst cost 76 825 {66 644}

The muricipality expetss to pay benefits of R 483 813 towards post rétirement medical aid and R 338 016 towards long service benefits
o its employea benefits in 2014,

The _mmicma}éty tha'é:ne_d anactuatial valiation for the first tima on the past retirement medical aid a£ 30 June 2010 and for the long
service benefits at 30 June 2011

Amouints, for the currént and previous four years are as follows:

\

2013 2012 2011 2010
B R R B
Deafined benefit obligations (11 474 814} {10 947 945} {5624 289) {3 685 000}
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18. Employee benefits {continued}
Defined contribution plans

tnciuded in defined contribution plan information above, are the following plans which are multi-employer funds and are defined
benefit plans, but due to the fact that sufficient information is not avallable to enable the municipality to account forthe plansasa
defined benefit plans. The municipality accounted for the following plans as defined contribution plans:

South African Local Authorities Pension Fund (SALA}
Free State Municipal Pension Fund (FSMPF}

This Is in line with tHe exemptina in |ASLS paragraph 30 whick states that where information required for proper defined henefit
accounting is not available in respect of multi-employer and state plans, these should be accounted for as defined contribution plans.
The municipality has been unsuccessiul in obtaining the necessary information to support proper defined benefit plan accounting due
to restrictions imposed by the multi-employer plan. tis therefora deemed Impracticable to obtain this information at a sultable levet of
detail,

South African Local Authorities Pension Fund (SALA}:

Some empioyees belong to the South African Local Authorities Pension Fund {SALA). The fatest actuarial vaiuation of the fund was 1 July
2011. The valuation indleated that the fund is in sound financial position. The actuarial valuation state that the fund is currently 98%
{2012: 96%) funded-by employer contributions. This has remained stable since the previous valsation date. If the current employer
contribution rate is maintained the fund is expected to be close to 100% funded at the next statutory valuation. The total liabilities of
the fund are R 8 172 million {2012: R 7 418 million} which are financed by net assets of R 8 014 million (2012: R 7 110 million).

Free State Municipal Pension Fund {FSMPF]

Some emploveas belong to the Free State Municlpal Pension Fund {FSMPF), The latest actuarial valuation of the fund was 30 lune 2005.
The valuation indicatad that the fund is in sound financial position. The total liabifities of the fund are R 1 308 million which are financed
by net assets of R 1 530 miltion.

According to the actuaries it is not possible to report separately for each municipality on these funds, thus the reasen for treating the
funds as contribution plans in terms of [AS19 paragraph 30,
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13. Non-current provisions

Reconciliation of non-current provisions - 2013

Opening balance  Discounting Totai
Rehabilitation of landfill sites 2864 000 125 832 3 (89 832
fecanciliation of non-current provisions - 2012

Opening balance  Discounting Total
Rehabilitation of landfill sites Z 586 691 377 309 2 964 GO0

Rehabilitation of {fandfill sites

The provision for rehahifitation of landfill sites relates to the legal obligation t¢ rehabilitate landfill sites to a condition whereby it
cormplies to the permit reguirements issued in terms of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act, 2002 {Act No. 28 of
20023

The provision has been determined by an independent firm of consulting engineers through investigation to determine the best
astimate for restoration at closure. The investigation comprised a desk study and site walkover. The sites were adjudicated according to
the Minimum Requirements for Waste Disposal by Landgfill as published by the Department of Water Affairs {DWA) which falls under the
Waste Act (Act No. 5% of 2008).

The payment dates of total closure and rehabilitation are uncertain, but are currently expected to be between 2024 and 2071

The Municipality has four active landfill sites as per the infrastructure gsset register:
- Frankfort Langfili;

- Mafahianeng tandfill {Tweeling);

- Ntshwanatsats! Landfll {Cornelia); and

- Villiers Landfill,

There were no landfill sites developed, plannead or closed during the currént or prior reporting period.

A parnit issued to any landfill site before 2008 wauid have failen under the Environrment Conservation Act, 1989 {Act No. 73 of 1988} it
has been identified that the fandfill sites situated in Cornelia, Frankfort, Tweeting and Villiers are not Hicensed as reguired by the Waste
Act (Act No., 59 of 2(‘)(3%} Refer ts fote 41
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20. Financial Habilities by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applfed to the items below:
2013

Financial Total

labitities at
amortised cost

Consumer deposits 702 102 702 102
Current portion of finance lease fiabilities 790 164 790 164
Payables from exchange transactions 143 364 661 143 364 661
Current portion of non-current borrowings 334 428 2244239
Nonh-current borrowings 1752745 1752745
Finance lease Kabilivies 1414 540 1414 540

148 348 641 148 348 641
2012

Financial Total

liabilities at
amortised cost
Consumer deposits 684 969 684 969
Current portion of finance lease abligation 1213540 1213 540
Payables frorexchange transactions 117788 007 117 788 007
Banik overdraft 3124278 3124278
Cutrent portion of non-current horrowings 323 297 323 297
Non-current borrowings 1931 835 1931835
Finance lease liabilitles 355 352 355 358
125421284

125421 284
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21, Revenue
Fines 133 744 218 185
Governmant grants and subsidies 110175513 106 096 725
Property rates 16322 286 19 167 186
Rental of facilities and equipment 151085 181074
Auction fees 772173 180919
Recoveries 2594934 1254872
Royalty income 648 011 -
Sarvice charges 437274721 &7 415 830
174 020 168 194 524 891
The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as
follows:
Service charges 43222421 57 415 830
Royalty income 648 011 -
Rental of facilities and eguipment 151 086 181074
Auction fees 772173 190 918
Recoveries 2594934 1254972
47 388 625 69 042 795
The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions Is as follows:
Taxation revenue
Property rates 15322 286 19 167186
Fines 133 744 218185
Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies 110175513 106 096 725
125482 096

126631 543
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22. Propertyrates

Actual rates received

Residential 11109 282 12845002
Business and industrial 11 531993 12516 132
Agricultural 813720 458 566
tncome forgone® {7 132 689} {6 649 514)

16322 286

19167 186

*Income forgone can be defined as any income that the Municipality is entitled to by law to levy, but which has subseguently been

forgone by way of rebate or remission.

Valuations

Residential 1141078811 1200 356 066

Business and industrial 248 357 087 159 749 880

Municipal and government 101 316598 21343 250

Agricultural 1825 035 400 289 608 435

Institutional, educationaf and churches A48 550 232 56 668 032
3 464 332628 1767 725 663

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every 5 years. The last general valuation roll was done in November 2010 and came
into effect on 1 July 20131, and is based on market-related values. Supplementary valuations are processed when completed by the

valuér annually; to take into account chaniges to individual property values due to alterations and subdivisions.
The first R 50 000 of the valuation of residential property is exempted from rates.

As per the approved budget the basic rates were adjusted as follows:

R 0.006286 (2012 R 0.008980) rate per Rand on the vajue of rateable residential property

R 0,134700 (2012: R 0.0179560) rate per-Rand on the value of rateable business progerty

R 0.057200-(2042: R 0.052000] rate pérRand on the vakue of rateable government property

R 0000530 (2012: R 0.000505] rate per Rand on tha value of agricultural property

R 0.044900 (20121 R 0.034900) rate per Rand on the value of vacant stands

23. . Service charges

11 448 812

Rufyse rermoval 1ES04 720

Sale of slectricity . 7% 044 915

Sate of water 14 824 634 17512749

Sundry service charges 1 146 875 857 142

Sewerage and sanitation charges 14 328 048 12 534 612

Solid waste 18 144 15 600
43272421 67 415 830
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24.  Rovyalty income

Royalty income® 648 011

*Rural Maintenance {Pty) Ltd pay a monthly rovaity for the use of the electricity network. The amount of the monthly royalty is based
on the bulk use of electricity. The amount of the royaity Is Tixed except with regards to annual rates increases.

25, Rental of facilities and equipment

Premises
Fremises 141428 149 926
Venue hire 16058 31 148

151086 181074
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26. Government grants and subsidies

Department of Water Affairs (DWA} 2599972 574 780
Equitable Share 72 863 0G0 67 456 228
Expanded Public Works Programme integrated Grant {(EPWP} 1024000 -
Fezite Dabi District Municipaiity 528119 3159209
Finance Management Grant (FMG} 19385601 1011398
Integrated National Electrification Programme (INEP) 8902770 g 194 397
Local Government Sector Education and Training Authority {LGSETA} 125 418 733983
funicipal hfragtructure Grant [MIG) . 18 688571 25421931
Municipal Systems improvement Grang (MSIG) 1285191 304 809
Treasury and Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs (COGTA} 1819871 -

110 175 513 106 096 725

Equitable share

tn terms of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 {Act No. 168 of 1996}, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of
hasic and administrative services to indigent community members and to subsidise income.

Integrated national electrification programme {INEP}

Balance unspent at beginning of year 6144 718 2239020
Current-year raceipls 10 000 000 12 100 600
Canditions met - transferred to revenue (8902 771) {8 1594 397}
Other - [405)

7241447 6144 218

Conditions still to be met - remain Habilities {ses note 17).

This grant is used to sddress the electrification backiog of permanently occupied residential dwellings, the installation of bulk
infrastructure and refiabilitation of alectrification infrastiucture,

Finance management grant {FMG}

Balancs unspént at beginning of year 438 602 -
Current-yedr recelpts : : S : 1500000 14500690

Canditions mat - transferred to revenue {1938 602} (1011 398

i 438 602

Tha purpose of this grant is to promote and support reforms to financial management and the implementation of the MFMA,
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26. Government grants and subsidies {continued)

Municipal infrastructure grant {MIG}

Receipts 25841 000 21303000
Conditions met - transferred 10 revenue {18 688 571} {25 421931}
Own funding - 4118931

7152429 -

Conditions still to be met - remain labilities {see note 17).

In terms of the MFMA Circular No. 48, all conditional aliocations {excluding interest earned thereon} that af vear-end are not utilised
must ravert back to Nationai Revenue Fund uniess the relevant receiving officer can prove to the satisfactlon of the National Treasury
that the unspent siocation i committed to identifiable projects.

This grant is used o supplement municipal capital budgets to eradicate backlogs in municipal infrastructure utifised in providing basic
sarvices for the benefit of poor households.

Municipat systems improvement grant {MSIG}

Balance unspent #t beginning of year 485 181 -
Current-year receipts &00 060 790 000
Conditions met - transferred 1o revenue {1285 191) {304 809)

- 485 191

The purpose of this grant is to assist municipalities in building in-house capacity to perform thelr functions and stabilise instifutional and
governance systemns as requirad in the Local Government and the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000).

Changes in level of government grants

Based on the allocations set out in the Division of Révenue Act, 20472 Act No. 5 of 2012), no sigriificant changes in the fsvel of
govarhment grant funding are éxpected over the forthcorning financial years.

27. . Redoveries

Employee cost recoverias® _ _ : o _ 2594 g:%z_zx 1254972

*The municipality pay the salaries of the seconded employees to Rural Malntenande (Pty} Ltd and recover the costs from Rursl
Maintenghee on a monthly Basis,
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28. Other income

Building plans 70722 56 643
Cemetery fees 126335 185 705
Certificates 60 149 703338
Caonnection faes 68 837 169 875
Ground grave! and soil 13728 27862
Incomae from agency services® 301 415 292 644
Licences and parmits - 1313
Metgr fees - 6 406
Other incomae 1593478 1951776
Tender deposits 36 318 13216

2211030 2756379

*Income from agency service consist out of the Rural Mainterance [Pty] Ltd electricity asset additions received that were initially
recognised as a iability (revenue received in advance) and thereafter recognised as income over the term of the PPP agreament.

29. interest received

interest

Other financial assets 8576 5 15%
Cash and cash equivalents 150 028 239 438
interest charged on consumer receivables 7355243 8921958

7 514 847 9 166 555
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30. Employee related costs

Salaries 61225798 47 093 293
Bonus 3058 145 2482813
Leave 776 366 3671381
Travel and subsistence allowances 1366 680 1623080

66 426 989 54 870 577

Remuneration of Municipat Manager - Radebe P 1

Annual remuneration 450732 510214
Back pay 25653 59059
Contributions to SDI 9904 7032
Contributions to UiF 1718 1497
Contributions to medical aid 42 796 -
Contributions to pension fund 210129 168 080
lLeave paid out 134 306 -
Travel allowance 213978 213978

1089 216 959 860

Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer - Molefe N N

Acting allowance 204 416 215470
Anntial remuneration 181 737 281 895
Back pay 104 051 52 255
Contributions to SDL 6 836 6087
Contributions to UIF 1256 1497
Contributions to medical ald 22527 -
Cc;ntrabutrms 1o pension fund 70735 23 801
Leave paid out 78475 -
Travel allowance 91 539 113 410

761 _112- 694 425

The CFQ rasigned on 15 Mareh 2018, t?‘ms the ;ammeratmn of the: {:hsef ?mancra § Officerin 2043 1s for a period af 9 mmzths An actmg
CFO was nominated z:%urmg March 2015 B :
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30. Employee related costs {continued)
Director Corporate Services - Malindi M 5
Acting allowance - 210 216
Annual remuneration 591 553 303 083
Back pay 19761 51 650
Contributions to 5DL 6829 6 206
Contributions to Uik 3080 1622
Contributions to pension fund 157 605 49 665
Leave paid out - 44816
Travel alowance 9% 800 97 476
878 578 764 434
Director Community Services - Mofokeng ZE
Annual remuneration 568 047 536 677
Back pay 19731 49 869
Contributions to SDL & 864 7109
Contributions to UIF 3080 1622
Contributions to medical aid 13688 -
Contributions to pension fund 88 530 79 892
Leave paid out - 109 082
Travél allowance 144 299 74017
844 219 858 208
Director Land use and Human Settlement - Radebe NE
Annual remuneration 531531 514 685
Backpay 19701 53 857
Contributions to $OL 8375 £420
Contributions to UiF 1718 1497
Contributions to pension fund - #8753
Leave paid out 109 479 B
Travel aliowarice 98000 46 000
866 504 681012
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30. Employee related costs (continued)
Director Technical Services - Maboya Ll M
Annual remuneration 205 000
Contributions to DL 2481
Contributions to UiF 585
Contributions to pension fund 21549
Travet allowance 68 333
308 358

The position was vacant in the prior year and the remuneration as reflected in 2013 was for a period of 4 months.
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21. Remuneration of counciliors
Councillors 5 440 964 5087472
In-kind benefits
The Mavyor and Speaker are full time emplovees and each are provided with an office and secretarial support at the cost of the
municipality. The Mayor has the use of a separate municipal owned vehicle for official duties.
Previous Mayor - Ntombela L M D
Armnual remuneration 229 461 447 996
Rack pay - 14 568
Cellphone allowance G420 18396
Cortributions to pension fund 34419 67 193
Contributions to SHL 1236 & 085
Contributions to WIF 749 1373
Trave! allowance 76 487 149 332
353772 704 950
Current Mayor - Sigase JE
Annual remuneration 385 190 -
Back pay 12 802 -
Celiphone allowance 15 76% -
Contributions to medical aid 21051 -
Contributions to psnsien fund 7089 -
Contributions to SDL 5147 -
Contributions to UIF 998 -
Travet allowance 135414 -
587 470 -
Speaker - Moloi T M
© Annual remungration 357 500 358394
Batkpay : 19252 11655
Celiphena allowance 21542 18386
Contrthutions to redicat aid Eigeic) 17 %89
Contributions to pension fund 40376 53 754
Centributions to $DL 5253 4 950
Contributions to UlF 848 1373
Travel allowance 176305 118 4685
602 215 588272
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32. Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
intangible assets 202 506 329 479
Investment property 380 350 380 350
Property, plant and eguipment 123054 041 118 438 827
123 676 891 120 148 656
33, Fingnce charges:
Cash and cash equivalents 201349 -
Employee benefits 823 288 800 801
Finance lease Habilities 237 339 523 305
Late payment of pension funds 455 510 573626
Late payment of taxes 1015171 432831
Non-current borrowings 105 285 115798
Non-current provisions 125832 -
Payables from exchange transactions 4314 822 5315857
7 278 597 7 862 228
34, Debtimpairment
Contributions to receivables impalrment provision 863 037 974 451
Contributions to consumer debtors impairment provision 394134286 8456 322
40 276 463 9430773
35, Bulk purchases
Electricily “ 33 588 448
Water g 168910 3 150159
9168 10 36 778 657
36 Grants and subsidies paid
indigent subsidies 7529210

7708 564

57



Mafube Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statementis for {he year ended 30 June 2013

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2013 2012
37, General expenses
Administration cost 167 127
Advertising 245 643 302 798
Assets expensed 182 247288
Bardk charges 247 661 741 185
Billing charges - 450
Bursaries 1280718 380 602
Chemicals 1426957 2535 208
Cléaning 137 013 1511777
Community development and training 2 446 434 1778338
Conferences and seminars 145 543 144 334
Consuiting and professional fees 3871 465 7 798 835
Consumables - 62 358
Bonations 37630 50 332
Electricity 7 548 155 3738452
Entertainment 653 348 395 385
External and internal audit fees 3462993 2 645 254
Fuel and gil 2161 463 2660913
IT expanses 569 803 712 6359
Insurance 427 804 117554
Integrated development plan (IDP) 1061 666 413 759
Lease rentals on operating lease 500 563 544 167
Legal fees 4086 665 730 163
Magazines, boaks and periodicals 17320 48 794
Maotor vehicle expenses 206077 1531096
(Other expenses 249 861 -
Pauper burials 37136 77 947
Policies and by-laws 67 800 332040
Postage and courier 403961 376 760
Printing and stationery 668 083 1 080 890
Project management unit 1721510 1000 145
Protective clothing 340 550 377923
Refuse - 376 8445 292 108
Secirity 113355 497988
Software expensés 176 184 899233
Staff welfare 35G 705 146 455
Subscriptions and membership fees 747222 542381
Teteghone and fax 1960627 5157438
Teaiing 7569 245735
33524 590
38, Falr value adjustments
Actuarial gain/lloss) on employae benefits {00 413} {667 669}
Other financial assats
YEB Agricutture Limited 33 655 111520
(65 747} {551 149
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39, Cash generated from operations
Deficit for the year {118 703 755} {84 588 278)
Adjustments for
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 123676 801 120 148 656
{Gainifloss on disposal of assets {608 632} -
Falr value adjustments 65 747 551 148
intarest income {7 364 819} {8927 117}
Finance charges 7077 244 7862228
Debt impatrment 40276 463 9430773
Service charges on employee benefits 395823 139 824
Income from agency services {307 415) (252 644}
Correction of prior year errors - {56 660 889)
Changes in working capital:
Inverdories {150 189) 46 397
Receivablas from exchange transactions {246 057) 49 516 387
Consumer debtors {29 088 566) {39 199 136)
Pavables from exchange transactions 20092 566 40411084
VAT {3040 151} 3034 448
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 7 325 865 4 867 318
Consumer deposks 17133 51 973
Employee benefits {791 666} {167 794)
Nen-current provisions - 377 368
38 632576 46 611 689

48, Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure
Approved and contracted for

infrastriscture asséts 32821971 19755 896

The 2012 comparative amount of R 18 775 896 has been restated from R 30 9356 517 as a resulf of the correction in the determination

of thie commitment value.

This committad axpeaéimm refates to nfrastricture and community assets and will be financed by existing cash ressurces, grants and

recaipls.

59



Mafube Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2013

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2013 2012

41, Contingent liabilities
The municipality has the following contingent Habilities:

Unlicensed fandfill sites:

The municipality has four active fandfill sites. It has been identified that the landfill sites situatad in Frankfort, Twealing, Cornelia and
villiers are not licensed as required by the National Environmenta! Management: Waste Act, {ACt No. 59 of 2008}, In accordance with
section 68{1) of the National Environmental Management: Waste Act, (Act No. 58 of 2008), a person convicted of an offence referred
to in section 67{1){a], (g} or {h] is lizkle to a fine not exceading R 10 000 000 or to imprisonment for a period not exceeding 10 years, or
to both such fine and such imprisonment, in addition to any other penalty or award thet may be imposed or made.

Sewerage leaking into the river:

Criminal charges have been laid against the Municipality over the contamination of drinking water by sewerage. A court date has been
given when the municipality is expected to appear o answer to the charges relating to the sewerage spills. Estimation of the financial
effect could not be made as it 15 unclear whether the court will impose a fine or imprisonmant in the case that the municipality is found
guilty.
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42.  Prior period errors
The following errors relating to prior vear were identified in the current geriod and have keen adjusted as indicated below:

1.} The audit fee expense, included under general expenses, of the prior year was gverstated due to the incorrect classification of
finance lease payments and consuiting fees amounting to R 6 730 023.

2.} Receivables from exchange transactions were understated as no receivable was raised in the prior years for the everpayment of
councitlors's remuneration to the amount of R 2 535 840,

3.} Pavables from exthange transactions were overstated. by R 1452 526 as a journal was processed to-atcount for the year end
accruals and it was already processed on the Venus system, thus double counted for.

4.} Receivables from exchange transactions were overstated by R 219 683 as a journa! was processed to account for the year end
outstanding rent due and it was already accounted for on the Venus system.

5.} Consumer debtors were overstated by R 462 135 as the municipality incorrectly billed rates and raised a recelvable on thelr own
buildings.

6.} Expenses amounting to R 38 410 151 of a capital nature were incorrectly allocated to operating expenditure in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

7.} Payables from exchange transactions were understated by R 211 283 as some the Eskom small accounts were omitted.

8.} Management initiated a project to address the asset management challenges and appointed consulting engineers to recreate the
fixed asset register to be GRAP compliant. Property, plant and equipment was restated by R 969 989 431,

9.} Property, plant and equipment was understated by R 10 541 885 due to movaable assets that were omitted in the prior year and
assets captured at the incorract cost prices.

10.) Employee benefits were ovérstated by R 111 854 due to seconded employees that were incorrectly excluded and temporary
employees that were incorrectly included from the long service employee benefit valuation.

The correction of the errors results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of Finandial Position

increase in receivables fram exchangs transactions 2316 157 2316 157
Decrease In consumerdebtors. {467 135} {462 135}
fncraase in properny, pfani‘ and equipment 1 030537 475 1030537478
Datrease n emg)k}yee henefits 111 854 111854
Hettesse in gagaab s from embar&g& ransactions {211 283} {212 283}

sase in VAT payabie’ 154 869 154869
De{:f@&sef{mcrea%} n acwmuiatéé {sarp ﬁs};’deﬁcst 11032 446 936} {1114 013 261§

Statement of Financial Performance

Decraase in rental of facifities and equipment . 219 683
lncrease it bulk purchiases - 1106207
Décrease tn countifiors remunégration - {330 91%)
Increass in depreciation, amartisation and impairments - 119690 247
Incréase in tinance charges - 2107
Deciease nrepairs and maintenance - (30317
Decresse in general expanses - {38 410 151}
Decreass in falr value adiustments - {111 854}
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43, Comparative figures

Cartain comparative figures have been reclassified to disclose and provide information that is more relevant to the users of the financial
statements and to show each materiat class of similar Rems separately in the financial statements. Thus to present items of dissimilar

nature or function separately in the financlal stamens,

The effects of the reclassifications are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position

increass in recetvables from enchange transactions {15 8193200
Increasa In consuimer debfors 10 000

Increass in payables from exchange transactions 15809 320

Decrease in property, plant and equipment {45 248 635)
Increase in investment properties 45 248 635

Statement of Financial Performance

increase i auction faes {190 919)
Increase in recoveries {1254 972)
Dacrease in other income 1 445 891

Increase in grants and subsidies paid 7708564

Dacrease in general expenses {7 708 564}

44, Financial sustainability

The municipality is experiencing financial difficulties, indicators are as follow:
- Suppliers were not paid within the legisiative 30 days;

- The municipality defaulted on the repayment of the DBSA non-current borrowings;

- The municigality used conditional grants raceived to pay for aperating expenses
- VAT retirns ware nét sibmitted and paid to SARS on time;

- PAYE, UIF and SDL were not submitted and paid over to SARS on time;

- Statutory deductions from sataries were deducted but not paid over on time; and
- Employee beénefit obligations are unfunded.

The municipatity is exploring a#témative eptions to improve it's financial position.

Tha anrnual financial statemeats Have heen prepared on the basis of actounting podicies applicable to a going concern. This basis
;}mgf.rmes that funds w;[é be avallable to finance fﬂtu{e eperations and that the réalisation of assets and sattlement of liabilities,

aar&zzageat uai}tEﬁ:ses aﬁd ﬁﬁm?ﬁit!’ﬂéﬁfs will oeeur in thi crdmarv cturse of Busiiess:

The ainkw e? the i icipality
the Accsuntmg ‘Officer con

w contiie ELS a going mnc&m is dependentona number.of factars. The most sign zfmarzt of these is that
& 1o source fm%dmg for thf:’f sngamg operations f’é}'i’ %;he mumapaézty S :

Ah:hotzgix certaing amg concerD ratjos fray appear m’favcarab &, the mumcg;aifty 5t has the power to levy fa’ces and taxes and it wsit
CORtINUE O fECEIE funﬁ ifrg Feom gwemmem as evident from the equitabie sharé al focation in terrms of the Division of Revenue Act,

Z012 (Mgt No. 5 of 2@12}
45. Events after the repsrt‘mg date

Mo significant everts cccurred after the reporting date.
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46. Related partles

Retationships

Members of key management Refer to general info and note 30 employee related cost.
Members of Coundi Refer to general info and note 31 remuneration of
Counciilors,

Related party balances

in tarms of section 164 {1}c) of the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act No. 58 of 2003} the municipality may hot grant joans to its
counciffors, managerment, staff and public with affect from 1 luly 2004,

No related party balances were identified for the current and prior reporting period.
Related party transactions

Key management and Cauncillors recelve and pay for services on the same terms and conditions as other rate payers. These
transactions are recorded at arms length.

47. Risk management
Capital risk management

The municipality's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the municipality's ability to continue 25 a going concern in order
to provide returns for all stakehalders and to maintain an optimal capital structure 1o reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the municipality consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 12, 13, cash and cash
aguivalents disclosed in note 7 and net assets as disclosed in the statement of financial position,

‘There have been no changes to what the municipality manages as capital, the strategy for capital maintenance of externally imposed
capitai requiréments from the previous year,

Financial risk management

The municipality’s activities expose itto a variety of financiai risks: including market risk {fair value interast rate risk, cash flow interest
rate risk and price risk}, credit risk and Houldity risk.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is te risk that the sindcipal entity will encounter difficulty in misdting the obligations assotiated w:th 12 fmam::aE {iabilitigs
that arg setﬂed by deﬁwermg fash or amtﬁer ?mam:ra% asset.

The mwnsc:zg:a ity’s nsk o izquié;@; 5 aresyit of the fuads available to fover future commitiments. Thﬁ m&atctﬁahty manage& %;qmésty risk
through an eﬁg@mg revzew of future comniitments and credi §ac§htles
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47. Risk management {continued}
interest rate risk

interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows associated with 2 financial instrument will fluctuate in
amount as a result of market interest changes. The entity's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term
financing.

The entity’s interest rate risk arises from non-current borrowings and finance lease labilities. Instruments lssued at fixad rates expose
the municipality to fair value interest rate risk. Interest rates on non-current borrowings are not basad on prime and therefore
fluctuations in-prirme will not affect the borrowings.

Financial liabilities which expeses the municipality to interest rate risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2013 2012
Mon-current borrowings 2077174 2255132
Finance lease Habilities 2204704 1568 898
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty to a financial or non financial asset wilt fail to discharge an chiigation and cause the municipality
to Incur a financial loss.

Credit risks consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalent and consumer debtors. The municipality only deposits cash with major
hanks with high quality eredit standing and limits exposure to any on counter-party.

Constmier debtors comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to consumers on an ongoing
basis. If consumars are independantly related, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no Independent rating, risk control assesses
the credit quality of the consumaers, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.

Consumer debtors are presented net of an altowance for impairment. Credit risk pertaining to consumer debtors is considered to be
high due 1o a history of nonpayment and limited follow up procedures by the municipality in the past. The municipality effectively has
the right to terminate services to customers but in practice this is difficult to apply. Consumer debtors whaose accounts enter into
airears, council sndeaveirs to collest sich accounts by levying of penalty charges, demand for payment, restriction of services and as a
fast resort handing over of debt foreoflection.

Ko consumer debtor or receivable from exchange transaction is pledged as security for any financial Habdlity.

Financial assets which exposes the municipatity fo c?eﬂit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument = ' - o ' ' 2013 2012

Recelvables from exchange transactions 2050519 2467499
Consumer debtors (Net amount) _ 38844 122 41813735
Cash and cash equivalents (Favourable halsnces) 2 659 087 326930
Other financial assets 417 687 373783

The munigipality s exposed to a guarantae for the unused bank overdraft facility in favour of ABSA bark Limited. Refer to note 7 for
details.

Price risk

The municipaiity & not exposed 6 prive risk.
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48. Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure - budget overspanding

21774063

17925031
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49, Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Cpening balance 17 845 988 10728059

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year {see incidents below) 5797 193 7117829

ltems certified as irrecoverable by Council {17 727 744) -
5915437 17 845 988

The above expenditure were condoned by councit at an ordinary council meeting held on 7 December 2012 in the Frankfort coundit

chamber.

incidents for the year

interest on overdue account - Eskom
Interast on overdue account - Rural
Maintenance (Pty) Ltd

interest and penalties on late payment of
VAT - SARS

Interest and penaities on late payment of
PAYE - SARS

Interest and penalties on late payment of
UIF - SARS

interest and penalties on late payment of
SDL - SARS

tnterest on late payment of deductions to
pension and provident funds

Arrear interest on DBSA lpan default
Interest on overdue account - Auditod-
Genaral o :

Intérest on overdus atcount - Talkom
fnterest on overdus acedunt - VKB

interest on overdus gecounts - Other trade
payables

Bank charges on unused fleet cards - ABSA

interest and penaities on late payment of
yehicle Brenges and traffic fines paid

Disciplinary steps / criminal proceedings

Reported and submitted, certified as
irrecoverable by Council

Report to be submitied, awaiting
condonement by Council.

Reportad and submitted, certified as
irrecoverable by Council.

Reported and submitted, certified as
irrecoverable by Council.

Reported and submitted, certified as
irrecoverable by Council.

Reported and submitted, certified as
irrecoverable by Council.

Reported and submitted, certified as
irrecovérable by Council,

Repotted ard submitted, certified as
irracoverable by Council

R&pe‘r‘fgéd.a_g%dﬁu%mitted, certified as
irrecoverable by Council,

* Reported and submitted, certified as

recovérable by Cotingil. -
Report to be submitied, awaiting
condosiemesnt by Cournzil,

Reported and submitted, certified as
irrecoverable by Coundil,

Reported and submitted, certified as
irrecoverable by Countil,

Reported and submmitted, certified as
irrecoverable By Council:

3811309

397 364

242547

414 891

241144

116 189

455 510

1237

103 851

3425

4 753

1333

3180

5876631

76 292
337 860
60301
58 378
573025
24472
83 823
2 9;;2
3267
58
13001

7 B3
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50. rregular expenditure

Opening balance 71142 943 42118515

Agd: irregular expenditure - current year 30 126 854 25024 434

Less: Amounts condoned {71 142 949} -

Less: Amounts recovered {not condoned) {56 316} -
30 070 538 71142 949

51. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act

Contributions to organised local government

Qpening balance 440 296 770630

Subscription fees 279823 4405 296

Payments made {220 148) {770 630}

499971 440 296

SALGA subscriptions for the current and prior reporting period.
Materiaf losses

There were no material losses through criminal conduct for the cutrent or prior reporting period.

The tast general valuation rol! was done in November 2010 and came into effect on 1 July 2011, The valuation rofl values were not

accurstely uploaded onte the Venus system, rates forgone due to lower values on the Venus system than on the valuation roll

amounted to a loss of R 1 540 749 {2012: R 1 540 748) in propenty rates.

Auditor General - Audit fees

Opening balance 1596352 806 358
Fees 3206473 2645254
Interest charged-on overdueatcount : 163851 83823
Payments - {3726:909) (1939083}

1180167 1596 352
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51, Additional disclosurs in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act {continued)
SARS - Pay as You Earn {PAYE}
Gpening balance {864 193} 2023616
Assassments 4 763 315 3835958
Amounts paid {36 737 626} (% 261 468}
Payment adjustments 36 567 377 {1 780 183}
interest and penalties 414 891 222 883
4143 764 (864 193)
SARS - Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF}
QOpening balance 414 243 402 063
Assassments 855303 794 536
Amounts paid {2 702 3539} (306 610)
Payment adjustments 3128 168 {536 045)
interest and penalties 241 144 60 301
1976 589 414 243
SARS - Skills Development Levy {SDL}
Opening balance 420317 223 229
Assessinents 549 919 444594
Armounts paid (820 824} {205 046)
Payment adjustments 752 807 {100 838)
interest and panaities 116 189 58378
1718 408 420317
pension fund and medical aid deductions
Gpening balancs (4 878.225) 2022910
Deductions made 14208152 11294313
Amdints paid - {8 763552} (18195 448}
566375 4 878 225)
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41. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Manayement Act {continued)
Councillors’ arrear consumer accounts
The following Councillors have arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days as at 30 June 2013:

Quistanding less Qutstanding Total

than 30 days rmore than 80
days
R R ]
Hadebe M FEY 5182 5914
laftais C 348 - 349
Mofokeng M M 370 - 370
Mosia AS 1264 314 1578
Motloung F P 1386 132 1518
Maotioung P 503 28674 3177
Maotloung W C 1135 1G 1396 11531
5739 18 698 24 437
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